
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room, 1212 George Jenkins Blvd. 
 

Wednesday, March 9, 2016, at 8:30 a.m. 
 
 

 

 

  

Call to Order           Action Required 
•    Roll Call 

 
 

1. Approval of Minutes   
• February 10, 2016, Board Meeting     Approval 
            

2. Crowe Horwath FY 9-30-2015 Audit Report Presentation  Accept 
 

3. Public Comments  TBD 
  

4. Finance / David Persaud   
a. LAMTD January Financial Report      None 
b. PT January Financial Report      None 
c.     Ridership Report – January 2016      None 
d.    Transportation Disadvantaged Program Finance Position  Approval 
e.    Transportation Disadvantaged Program Trust Fund Resolution  Approval 

 
5. Darby Law Group / Tim Darby   

      a.    Interlocal Agreement between Winter Haven and LAMTD serving 
             as the Administrative Agency   Approval 
      b.    Interlocal Agreement between LAMTD & City of Winter Haven  
             to run the LEGOLAND Route 30  Approval 
 

6. Board Action  TBD 
  

 

7. Human Resources / Mary Lynne Janoso & Dean Kirkland-McMillan  
     a.   Position Approval – Facilities Technician     Approval 
     b.   Position Approval – Transit Coach      Approval 
     c.    MOU Article 13 and – Union CBA Amendment to Article 19  Approval 
 

8. Reports / Tom Phillips         
     a.   Executive Update                                                                            None 
     b.   MOU – Communication       Approval 
      
 
 

9. Other Business  TBD 
 
    

 

 
Adjournment 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #2 

 
 
Agenda Item: Approval of February 10, 2016, Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes. 
 
Presenter: Marcy Harrison 
  
Recommended  
Action: Board of Directors approve the Minutes of the        

February 10, 2016. 
 
Summary: The LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting Minutes for 

February 10, 2016, summarizes agenda items covered 
during that meeting. 

 
  
Attachments: February 10, 2016, Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 

 

 
 
   

Directors: 
City of Lakeland Commissioner John Hall - Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey – Vice Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner Jim Malless - Secretary 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Don Selvage  
City of Lakeland Commissioner Phillip Walker 
 
Executive Director:  Tom Phillips 
Executive Assistant:  Marcy Harrison 
 
 
Call to Order  
 8:30a.m. by Chairman John Hall 
 
 
 
 
Roll Call 

Present   Excused                           
Commissioner Hall    Commissioner Selvage                         
Commissioner Malless         Commissioner Lindsey                   

 Commissioner Walker 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of Minutes 
Approval requested for the approval of the January 13, 2016 LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting 
Minutes.      
                  “Approval January 13, 2016 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
Agenda Item #2 – Public Comments  
None at this time 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #3 – Board Actions  
None 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item #4 – Finance / David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
(a)  Financial Statement December 2015 

Year to Date December 31, 2015 
 

Description YTD of FY  
Budget 

YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 
Expended 

Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 25% $2,580,920 $4,012,135 156% $10.3 Million 
Expenses YTD 25% $2,580,920 $2,043,190 79% $10.3 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through December 31, 2015 totaled $4.0 million or 156% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect 120% of budgeted revenues through December 31, 2015.  The revenues are over 
budget due to contractual revenues from RAMCO  $93,000 received. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.3 million or 90% of budget.  The total budgeted revenues is $3.65 million 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants is being billed quarterly effective fiscal year 2014-2015.  The first billing covered 
the quarter ending Dec. 31, 2015.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean the services must be provided 
before we receive grant assistance.  

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 

means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  

• Advertising income totaled $47,464 or 109% of YTD budget. 
• Other revenues are not significant and are on a cash basis which means these revenues are recognized when the 

cash is received and in line with the year-to-date budget. 
 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through December 31, 2015 totaled $2.04 million or 69% of the YTD budget. 

• Salaries and benefits represent 63% of the FY 2015-2016 budget.  As of December 31, 2015 those expenses 
totaled $1.5 million or 90% of the YTD budget due to vacant positions. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $44,000 or 42% of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $11,053 or 32% of the YTD budget.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $129,000 or 59% YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  

 



 

• Materials and supplies totaled $163,000 under budget by 10% due to use of parts and supplies, a favorable 
variance. 

 
• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $7,500 under budget. 

 
• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for the City of Lakeland Bicycle 

Program subscription. 
 

• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments totaled $66,267 slightly over the budget due to 
property appraiser fees paid. 
 

Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through December 31, 2015 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through Dec. 31st the financials reflect favorable budget to 
actual performance. (revenues over expenses) due to receipt of property tax revenue. 

 
STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FOUR YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

                                                                             9/30/2014            9/30/2013                9/30/2012                    9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)           25.71%                   28.7%                         26%                               22.6% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                                $86.29                    $83.84                       $83.62                             $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                            117,008                  116,422                     112,539                           115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                              $1,316,739            $1,367,289               $1,317,442                      $1,349,788 
5.  Ridership                                                      1,647,010              1,638,470                  1,452,161                        1,768,087 

 
(b) County Full Time Position  
 
The Polk County Transit Budget has a FY 2015-2016 funded part-time position totaling$15,370 for Customer 
Service and Sales for fares and passes. The current schedule for pass sales and customer service is as follows: 
   Tuesday and Wednesday 9:15am to 1:15pm  
   Thursday and Friday 12:15pm to 4:15pm 
  
 The new hours will be: 
 Monday through Friday 8:30am to 4:00pm 
 
In order to provide excellent Customer Service and allow the public the opportunity to be able to purchase fares 
continuously as well as to promote the Polk Transit service to the public, this is a worthwhile effort. This position 
will also do additional work in reconciling sales records on the Q GIV System.  The additional funding required 
will be $19,050 annually and is available in the Polk County Transit Budget. The total for the position is $34,420 
with fringe benefits. 
 
             “Approval for full time position with annual salary of $34,420 for the County Transit Operations” 
            
          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

(c)   Polk Transit Financials: 
 
  Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
         Monthly Financial Report 

     Polk County Transit Contract 
                 Month of December 31, 2016 
                        Year to Date Report 
                 Percent of FY Reported (25%) 

 
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $1,343,489 or 82% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The FTA grant drawdown will occur later in the fiscal year based on expenses incurred on a 

reimbursement basis. 
 Fare Revenues totaled $32,169, or 69% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The County funding is designed to reflect a 1/12 allocation as cash advance to facilitate cash flow with 

receipt of $1.3 million. 
 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $806,758 or 49% of the year-to-date budget.  
 Salaries and wages totaled $492,183 or 57% of the YTD Budget. 
 Operating expenses totaled $314,575 or 55% of the YTD Budget. 
 The contract services is for contractual cost for the Lynx service and other planned contractual services 

such as Transportation Disadvantaged that is lagging. 
 
 

Revenues 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Revenues            
FTA 5307 Grant  $         1,125,545  17%  $        281,386   $                  -  0% 
Fares  $            186,661  3%  $         46,665   $         32,169  69% 
PCTS  $         5,245,278  80%  $     1,311,320   $     1,311,320  100% 
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     1,639,371   $     1,343,489  82% 

      
      

      
 
 

 
     

Expenses 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Labor  $         3,434,803  52%  $        858,701   $        492,183  57% 
           
Contract  $            833,783  13%  $        208,446   $                  -  0% 
            
Operating  $         2,288,898  35%  $        572,225   $        314,575  55% 
            
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     1,639,371   $        806,758  49% 



 

(d) Request approval to demolish the old Fuel Island on the Transit Property. 
  
Approval for demolishing the old Fuel Island located at George Jenkins Blvd. for safety purposes. The old Fuel 
Island located at 1212 George Jenkins Blvd. has exhausted its useful life and is in a state of repair or demolition. 
 
A new Fuel Island was constructed and the old Fuel Island has deteriorated physically and the remaining 
structure is a cause for safety and removal. Staff will solicit the services of a contractor to demolish the structure 
and remove it for safety concerns. 
 
The estimated independent cost estimate to complete the work is $10,500 to solicit the service for an 
independent contractor to complete the demolition. The funding needs to be addressed. The only funding 
source is the debt service funds restricted in FY 2015-16 budget totaling $680,000. These funds are designated 
for one bus replacement in FY 2016 for $46,000 and improvement to 6 buses for $180,000 for a total of $226,000 
leaving a balance of $454,000. The lease financing in FY 2015-16 for debt service for FY 2015-16 and FY 2016-17 
for three buses based on the lease financing completed is $133,000 annually. Funding remaining is estimated at 
$367,000.  Appropriation from the restricted debt service funds addressed above. 
 
 
           “Approval for demolishing the old fuel island located at 1212 George Jenkins for safety purposes” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
(e)  January ridership report was presented to the Board – see attached 
 
(f)  Bus Lease Agreement presented to the Board -  
 
The debt service funding total of $680,000 is included in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-2016 Budget.  
  
The District FY 2015-2016 budget for capital funding reflects three fixed route bus purchases, one in FY 2015-
2016 and two in FY 2016-2017. The estimated annual debt of service over 12 years totaled $132,905 annually 
($44,300 per bus). Funds will be escrowed in an interest bearing account and restricted for debt services. 
 
On December 10, 2015, the District issued a Request for Proposal #16-015, on behalf of the Finance Department, 
for experienced and qualified firms interested in providing a Fixed Rate Bus Lease-Purchase Agreement for the 
District’s Fleet Replacement Program. More specifically to finance three (3) heavy duty, fixed route buses and 
add-on equipment.  The approximate amount for the purchase is $1,357,500.00 ($452,500 per bus). 
  
The solicitation was posted publicly on the District’s website, and the “business-2-government” web service 
“Demand-star.com”, provided by Onvia.  
  
Twenty five (25) firms received notification of the posting, of which 13% were Minority Owned Small Businesses 
found through the District’s Vendor Database, BizNet website, or Demandstar. 
 
 
The offers received were evaluated 70% price and 30% technically. The price review was given a higher weight 
to ensure the most advantageous interest rate available. Though equally important, the technical review was 
given a lessor weight, allowing us to ensure the selected firm possessed longevity, experience, adequate staff, 
and a clear understanding of the requirements outlined in the solicitation. 



 

 
Two offers were received and reviewed for responsiveness by the Contract Specialist. The Source Evaluation 
Committee (SEC) reviewed the proposals received in accordance with the evaluation criteria identified in Section 
5 of the solicitation with the award recommendation is given to the highest ranked offeror that best 
demonstrated the ability to meet the needs of the District.  
 
A responsibility review was conducted to verify the firm’s ability to perform the specified services.  The 
evaluation resulted in the firm of Banc of America Public Capital Corporation (BAPCC), a subsidiary of Bank of 
America, N.A. being recommended as the best value for the District. 
 
The offer submitted by BAPCC reflects an interest rate of 2.64820 %, falling within the budget provisions 
attached here. 
 
Recommend Board approve award of Contract #16-015 for the Bus Lease-Purchase Agreement to Banc of 
America Public Capital Corporation (BAPCC), a subsidiary of Bank of America, National Association, for a Not to 
Exceed $1,357,500 in Principal Funding over twelve (12) year term. 
 
     “Approval of Bus Lease Agreement” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #5 – Operations / Dean Kirkland-McMillan, Director of Safety, Security & Operational Support 
(a)  SSPP was presented to the Board for approval – see attached 
 
   “Approval of the Bus Transit System Safety Program Plan” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
(b)  SPP was presented to the Board for approval – see attached 
 
  “Approval of the Bus Transit Security Program Plan” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
    
 
 
Agenda Item #6  -  Government Relations / Erin Killebrew, Governmental & Community Relations Director 
Fast Act 2015 was presented to the Board of Directors – see attached 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item #7  -  Executive Update / Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
(a)  Executive Updates - Activity Report presented to board – see attached 

1. FDOT has given Citrus Connection approval to begin construction on the Florida Ave./I-4 park n ride. 
2. We will be meeting with Eagle Lake to broker transportation for their area. 
3. MOUs to be presented next month with a few changes and budgetary neutral. 
4. Meetings with Deric Feacher are moving forward for the City to fund the additional service on 

Sundays for LEGOLAND. 
(b)  South Eastern Proposal was presented to the Board – see attached 
(c)  Greyhound Update – Service will begin on February 24, 2016 with two pick-ups seven days a week.  The 
ribbon cutting will take place at the Winter Haven Terminal on February 24th at 1:30pm. 
(d)  Transition House Update – Board members were updated on the contract and payment situation with the 
Transition House. 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #9 – Other Business 
None 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
Approved this 9th day of March, 2016. 
 
______________________________________                         _____________________________ 
Chairman – Commissioner John Hall    Minutes Taker – Marcy Harrison 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

 

 
 
Agenda Item: Crowe Horwath FY 2015 Presentation 

 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments: Audit Presentation 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

 

 
 
Agenda Item: Public Comments 
 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: None 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4(a) 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: January 31, 2016 – Monthly Financial Statement  
 FY 2015-2016  
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget 
financial statements, Interim Statements do not have to be 
audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date January 31, 2016 

FY 2015-2016 
Year to Date January 31, 2016 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 33% $3,441,223 $4,287,622 125% $10.3 Million 
Expenses YTD 33% $3,441,223 $2,794,483 81% $10.3 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through January 31, 2016 totaled $4.3 million or 125% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect 113% of budgeted revenues through January 31, 2016.  The revenues are over budget 
due to contractual revenues from RAMCO $93,000 received. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.34 million or 92% of budget.  The total budgeted revenues is $3.65 million 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants is being billed quarterly effective fiscal year 2014-2015.  The first billing covered 
the quarter ending Dec. 31, 2015.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean the services must be provided 
before we receive grant assistance.  

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 

means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  
 

• Advertising income totaled $57,000 or 98% of budget. 
 

• Other revenues are not significant and are on a cash basis which means these revenues are recognized when the 
cash is received and in line with the year-to-date budget. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item #4 – Finance / David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
(a)  Financial Statement December 2015 

Year to Date December 31, 2015 
 

Description YTD of FY  
Budget 

YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 
Expended 

Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 25% $2,580,920 $4,012,135 156% $10.3 Million 
Expenses YTD 25% $2,580,920 $2,043,190 79% $10.3 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through December 31, 2015 totaled $4.0 million or 156% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect 120% of budgeted revenues through December 31, 2015.  The revenues are over 
budget due to contractual revenues from RAMCO  $93,000 received. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.3 million or 90% of budget.  The total budgeted revenues is $3.65 million 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants is being billed quarterly effective fiscal year 2014-2015.  The first billing covered 
the quarter ending Dec. 31, 2015.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean the services must be provided 
before we receive grant assistance.  

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 

means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  

• Advertising income totaled $47,464 or 109% of YTD budget. 
• Other revenues are not significant and are on a cash basis which means these revenues are recognized when the 

cash is received and in line with the year-to-date budget. 
 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through December 31, 2015 totaled $2.04 million or 69% of the YTD budget. 

• Salaries and benefits represent 63% of the FY 2015-2016 budget.  As of December 31, 2015 those expenses 
totaled $1.5 million or 90% of the YTD budget due to vacant positions. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $44,000 or 42% of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $11,053 or 32% of the YTD budget.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $129,000 or 59% YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  

 



 

• Materials and supplies totaled $163,000 under budget by 10% due to use of parts and supplies, a favorable 
variance. 

 
• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $7,500 under budget. 

 
• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for the City of Lakeland Bicycle 

Program subscription. 
 

• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments totaled $66,267 slightly over the budget due to 
property appraiser fees paid. 
 

Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through December 31, 2015 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through Dec. 31st the financials reflect favorable budget to 
actual performance. (revenues over expenses) due to receipt of property tax revenue. 

 
STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FOUR YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

                                                                             9/30/2014            9/30/2013                9/30/2012                    9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)           25.71%                   28.7%                         26%                               22.6% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                                $86.29                    $83.84                       $83.62                             $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                            117,008                  116,422                     112,539                           115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                              $1,316,739            $1,367,289               $1,317,442                      $1,349,788 
5.  Ridership                                                      1,647,010              1,638,470                  1,452,161                        1,768,087 

 
(b) County Full Time Position  
 
The Polk County Transit Budget has a FY 2015-2016 funded part-time position totaling$15,370 for Customer 
Service and Sales for fares and passes. The current schedule for pass sales and customer service is as follows: 
   Tuesday and Wednesday 9:15am to 1:15pm  
   Thursday and Friday 12:15pm to 4:15pm 
  
 The new hours will be: 
 Monday through Friday 8:30am to 4:00pm 
 
In order to provide excellent Customer Service and allow the public the opportunity to be able to purchase fares 
continuously as well as to promote the Polk Transit service to the public, this is a worthwhile effort. This position 
will also do additional work in reconciling sales records on the Q GIV System.  The additional funding required 
will be $19,050 annually and is available in the Polk County Transit Budget. The total for the position is $34,420 
with fringe benefits. 
 
             “Approval for full time position with annual salary of $34,420 for the County Transit Operations” 
            
          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date January 31, 2016 

FY 2015-2016 
 
 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through January 31, 2016 totaled $2.8 million or 81% of the YTD budget. 

• Salaries and benefits represent 63% of the FY 2015-2016 budget.  As of January 31, 2016 those expenses   
totaled $1.9 million or 88% of the YTD budget due to vacant positions. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $76,000 or 55% of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $15,000 or 32% of the YTD budget.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $151,000 or 51% YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $187,000 under budget by 23% due to increase use of parts and supplies, a 

favorable variance 
 

• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $7,500 under budget. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for the City of Lakeland Bicycle 
Program subscription. 

 
• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments totaled $235,000, over the budget due to 

property appraiser fees and CRA fees of $139,200. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through January 31, 2016 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through Jan. 31st the financials reflect favorable budget to 
actual performance. (revenues over expenses) due to receipt of property tax revenue. 

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                                                            9/30/15            9/30/2014       9/30/2013         9/30/2012            9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)        25.50%              23.08%               25.16%             23.02%                    20.32% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                              $89.45                $86.29               $83.84                $83.62                    $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                          103,550             117,008             116,422              112,539                  115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $847,360          $1,316,739       $1,367,289         $1,317,442           $1,349,788 
5.  Ridership                                                  1,424,965           1,647,010         1,638,470           1,452,161              1,768,087 

 
 



M
O

NT
H 

O
F 

 
(S

oR
E 

6/
3/

15
)

 

$'
s

%
$'

s
%

RE
VE

NU
ES

:
15

Fa
re

bo
x/

Pa
ss

 S
al

es
54

,7
02

$ 
   

   
   

82
,2

28
$ 

   
   

   
(2

7,
52

7)
$ 

   
   

  
-3

3%
32

1,
64

4
$ 

   
   

 
32

8,
91

3
$ 

   
   

 
(7

,2
69

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-2
%

98
6,

74
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
C

on
tra

ct
 In

co
m

e 
(U

AP
)

13
,6

04
$ 

   
   

   
27

,7
87

$ 
   

   
   

(1
4,

18
3)

$ 
   

   
  

-5
1%

54
,4

15
$ 

   
   

   
11

1,
14

7
$ 

   
   

 
(5

6,
73

2)
$ 

   
   

  
-5

1%
33

3,
44

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

b
O

th
er

 C
on

tra
ct

 R
ev

en
ue

51
,3

14
$ 

   
   

   
42

,7
99

$ 
   

   
   

8,
51

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
%

31
2,

58
2

$ 
   

   
 

17
1,

19
7

$ 
   

   
 

14
1,

38
5

$ 
   

   
 

83
%

51
3,

59
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

In
co

m
e

18
,7

10
$ 

   
   

   
83

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
17

,8
77

$ 
   

   
   

21
45

%
21

,4
48

$ 
   

   
   

3,
33

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

18
,1

15
$ 

   
   

   
54

3%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
19

Ad
ve

rti
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
s

9,
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

14
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
(5

,1
50

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-3
6%

56
,8

14
$ 

   
   

   
58

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

(1
,1

86
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-2

%
17

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

In
ve

st
m

en
t/I

nt
er

es
t I

nc
om

e 
(n

et
)

1,
16

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

93
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

06
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

43
%

14
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

37
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(2
27

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-6
1%

1,
12

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

Ad
 V

al
or

um
 In

co
m

e,
 n

et
65

,8
18

$ 
   

   
   

30
4,

03
0

$ 
   

   
 

(2
38

,2
12

)
$ 

   
   

-7
8%

3,
34

7,
60

3
$ 

   
 

1,
21

6,
12

0
$ 

   
 

2,
13

1,
48

3
$ 

   
 

17
5%

3,
64

8,
36

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
FD

O
T 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
G

ra
nt

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
6,

79
9

$ 
   

   
 

(1
36

,7
99

)
$ 

   
   

-1
00

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
54

7,
19

7
$ 

   
   

 
(5

47
,1

97
)

$ 
   

   
-1

00
%

1,
64

1,
59

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

23
Fe

de
ra

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
G

ra
nt

 
24

,9
34

$ 
   

   
   

21
8,

67
3

$ 
   

   
 

(1
93

,7
39

)
$ 

   
   

-8
9%

24
,9

34
$ 

   
   

   
87

4,
69

3
$ 

   
   

 
(8

49
,7

59
)

$ 
   

   
-9

7%
2,

62
4,

08
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
24

C
ha

rit
ab

le
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
C

os
t R

ec
ov

er
y

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0%
2,

08
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

08
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
27

Ba
rto

w
 E

xp
re

ss
5,

18
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
4,

40
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
78

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
18

%
19

,9
70

$ 
   

   
   

17
,6

07
$ 

   
   

   
2,

36
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
13

%
52

,8
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

b
PC

TS
 - 

Su
pp

or
t C

os
t R

ei
m

b.
31

,4
94

$ 
   

   
   

28
,1

61
$ 

   
   

   
3,

33
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

%
12

5,
97

7
$ 

   
   

 
11

2,
64

3
$ 

   
   

 
13

,3
33

$ 
   

   
   

12
%

33
7,

93
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
es

er
ve

TO
TA

L 
RE

VE
NU

ES
27

6,
27

5
$ 

   
   

 
86

0,
30

6
$ 

   
   

 
(5

84
,0

31
)

$ 
   

   
-6

8%
4,

28
7,

62
2

$ 
   

 
3,

44
1,

22
3

$ 
   

 
84

6,
39

8
$ 

   
   

 
25

%
10

,3
23

,6
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

EL
IG

IB
LE

 E
XP

EN
SE

S:
32

Sa
la

rie
s

25
1,

96
4

$ 
   

   
 

36
2,

43
6

$ 
   

   
 

(1
10

,4
72

)
$ 

   
   

-3
0%

1,
34

7,
74

4
$ 

   
 

1,
44

9,
74

6
$ 

   
 

(1
02

,0
02

)
$ 

   
   

-7
%

4,
34

9,
23

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

33
Em

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
10

0,
14

5
$ 

   
   

 
17

9,
58

1
$ 

   
   

 
(7

9,
43

5)
$ 

   
   

  
-4

4%
56

7,
84

0
$ 

   
   

 
71

8,
32

3
$ 

   
   

 
(1

50
,4

83
)

$ 
   

   
-2

1%
2,

15
4,

96
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
34

Ad
ve

rti
si

ng
 F

ee
s 

- A
dm

in
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
(1

,0
08

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-1
00

%
1,

21
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
4,

03
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
(2

,8
23

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-7
0%

12
,1

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 &

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 S

er
v.

31
,9

75
$ 

   
   

   
34

,5
67

$ 
   

   
   

(2
,5

92
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-7

%
75

,9
31

$ 
   

   
   

13
8,

26
7

$ 
   

   
 

(6
2,

33
6)

$ 
   

   
  

-4
5%

41
4,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

36
C

on
tra

ct
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
6,

62
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
7,

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
(1

,1
27

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-1
5%

15
,3

68
$ 

   
   

   
31

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

(1
5,

63
2)

$ 
   

   
  

-5
0%

93
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

37
O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
3,

47
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

,5
46

$ 
   

   
   

(8
,0

71
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-7

0%
14

,5
28

$ 
   

   
   

46
,1

83
$ 

   
   

   
(3

1,
65

6)
$ 

   
   

  
-6

9%
13

8,
55

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

Fu
el

 &
 L

ub
ric

an
ts

 (n
et

)
51

,8
20

$ 
   

   
   

73
,4

28
$ 

   
   

   
(2

1,
60

8)
$ 

   
   

  
-2

9%
15

0,
80

3
$ 

   
   

 
29

3,
71

0
$ 

   
   

 
(1

42
,9

07
)

$ 
   

   
-4

9%
88

1,
13

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

Fr
ei

gh
t

21
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
18

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
75

6%
1,

13
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

03
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

31
%

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

R
ep

ai
r &

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 A
dm

in
 B

ld
g

20
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

(7
99

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-8
0%

57
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

(3
,4

28
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-8

6%
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
42

M
at

er
ia

ls
 &

 S
up

pl
ie

s
44

,2
96

$ 
   

   
   

60
,4

51
$ 

   
   

   
(1

6,
15

5)
$ 

   
   

  
-2

7%
18

6,
96

2
$ 

   
   

 
24

1,
80

3
$ 

   
   

 
(5

4,
84

1)
$ 

   
   

  
-2

3%
72

5,
41

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
43

U
til

iti
es

/T
el

ep
ho

ne
 - 

Ad
m

in
8,

98
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
9,

20
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
(2

23
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-2

%
34

,4
80

$ 
   

   
   

36
,8

33
$ 

   
   

   
(2

,3
54

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-6
%

11
0,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

44
Ph

ys
ic

al
 D

am
ag

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

2,
06

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
15

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

(8
7)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-4
%

8,
26

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

8,
61

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

(3
49

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-4
%

25
,8

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
Li

ab
 &

 P
ro

p 
D

am
ag

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

17
,8

32
$ 

   
   

   
18

,2
50

$ 
   

   
   

(4
18

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-2
%

71
,3

27
$ 

   
   

   
73

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

(1
,6

73
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-2

%
21

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
46

O
th

er
 C

or
po

ra
te

 In
su

ra
nc

e
1,

01
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

95
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

16
31

%
1,

01
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
23

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
77

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
33

3%
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
D

ue
s 

& 
Su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
87

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

52
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
(6

57
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-4

3%
17

,8
88

$ 
   

   
   

6,
11

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
,7

72
$ 

   
   

   
19

2%
18

,3
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
49

Ed
uc

at
io

n/
Tr

ai
ni

ng
/M

ee
tin

g/
Tr

av
el

2,
99

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
08

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

(3
,0

91
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-5

1%
25

,3
13

$ 
   

   
   

24
,3

43
$ 

   
   

   
97

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
4%

73
,0

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

ha
rg

es
2,

24
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

48
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
(1

,2
41

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-3
6%

5,
38

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

13
,9

33
$ 

   
   

   
(8

,5
45

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-6
1%

41
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
O

ffi
ce

 E
xp

en
se

3,
82

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

4,
09

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

(2
69

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-7
%

25
,9

37
$ 

   
   

   
16

,3
84

$ 
   

   
   

9,
55

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

58
%

49
,1

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

52
Ad

ve
rti

si
ng

 &
 P

ro
m

ot
io

n
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

03
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
(3

,0
33

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-1
00

%
7,

52
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

,1
33

$ 
   

   
   

(4
,6

10
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-3

8%
36

,4
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
Ex

pe
ns

es
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

85
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
(1

,8
50

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-1
00

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
(7

,4
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-1
00

%
22

,2
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
54

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
pp

ra
is

er
/T

ax
 C

ol
le

ct
or

 C
om

m
15

2,
95

0
$ 

   
   

 
21

,5
33

$ 
   

   
   

13
1,

41
7

$ 
   

   
 

61
0%

23
4,

84
8

$ 
   

   
 

86
,1

33
$ 

   
   

   
14

8,
71

4
$ 

   
   

 
17

3%
25

8,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
55

PT
A/

W
in

te
r H

av
en

 B
illa

bl
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
51

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(4

63
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-9

0%
41

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

06
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
(1

,6
56

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-8
0%

6,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Ca

pi
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
56

,7
16

$ 
   

   
   

22
6,

86
4

$ 
   

   
 

68
0,

59
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

TO
TA

L 
EL

IG
IB

LE
 E

XP
EN

SE
S:

68
3,

54
8

$ 
   

   
 

86
0,

30
6

$ 
   

   
 

(1
76

,7
58

)
$ 

   
   

-2
1%

2,
79

4,
48

3
$ 

   
 

3,
44

1,
22

3
$ 

   
 

(6
46

,7
40

)
$ 

   
   

-1
9%

10
,3

23
,6

70
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

NE
T 

RE
VE

NU
ES

 O
VE

R
(U

ND
ER

)  
EX

PE
NS

ES
(4

07
,2

72
)

$ 
   

   
(0

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

(4
07

,2
72

)
$ 

   
   

1,
49

3,
13

9
$ 

   
 

(0
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

49
3,

13
9

$ 
   

 
(0

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 

Ac
tu

al
Bu

dg
et

Va
ria

nc
e

FY
 2

01
6

M
O

NT
HL

Y 
FI

NA
NC

IA
L 

ST
AT

EM
EN

T

M
on

th
YT

D
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 A

nn
ua

l B
ud

ge
t

Ac
tu

al
Bu

dg
et

Va
ria

nc
eJa

n 
20

16

3/
3/

20
16

   
12

:3
8 

PM
F:

\A
C

C
TG

-F
IN

AN
C

E\
AG

EN
D

A 
IT

EM
S-

LA
M

TD
 B

O
D

\B
O

AR
D

 F
-S

\B
oa

rd
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

15
-1

6\
04

 J
an

 '1
6\

Ja
n 

FY
 '1

6 
(0

30
11

6)



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4(b) 

Agenda Item: January 2016 Financials for Polk County Transit Services 
Contract  

Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 

Recommended 
Action: None 

Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less 
than one year. The report is used to convey the 
performance of the District’s financial position and 
budget comparisons – budget to actual on a year-to-date 
basis. Unlike annual financial statements, Interim 
Statements do not have to be audited. 

Interim financial statements increase communication 
between the District Board of Directors, management and 
the public to provide up-to-date financial information and 
compliance with the budget. 

Attachments: See Attachments 



AGENDA ITEM #4(b) - CONT. 

 Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
 Monthly Financial Report 

 Polk County Transit Contract 
  Month of January 31, 2016 
       Year to Date Report 

 Percent of FY Reported (33%) 

Revenues 
 The revenues totaled $1.8 million or 82% of the year-to-date budget.
 The FTA grant drawdown will occur later in the fiscal year based on

expenses incurred on a reimbursement basis.
 Fare Revenues totaled $41,000, or 66% of the year-to-date budget.
 The County funding is designed to reflect a 1/12 allocation as cash

advance to facilitate cash flow with receipt of $1.8 million.

Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and

contract expenses.
 Total expenses for the period totaled $1.24 million or 57% of the

year-to-date budget.
 Salaries and wages totaled $780,000 or 68% of the YTD Budget.
 Operating expenses totaled $456,000 or 60% of the YTD Budget.
 The contract services is for contractual cost for the Lynx service and

other planned contractual services such as Transportation
Disadvantaged that is lagging.



(c)   Polk Transit Financials: 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
       Monthly Financial Report 
    Polk County Transit Contract 
   Month of December 31, 2016 
          Year to Date Report 
   Percent of FY Reported (25%) 

Revenues 
 The revenues totaled $1,343,489 or 82% of the year-to-date budget.
 The FTA grant drawdown will occur later in the fiscal year based on expenses incurred on a

reimbursement basis.
 Fare Revenues totaled $32,169, or 69% of the year-to-date budget.
 The County funding is designed to reflect a 1/12 allocation as cash advance to facilitate cash flow with

receipt of $1.3 million.

Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract expenses.
 Total expenses for the period totaled $806,758 or 49% of the year-to-date budget.
 Salaries and wages totaled $492,183 or 57% of the YTD Budget.
 Operating expenses totaled $314,575 or 55% of the YTD Budget.
 The contract services is for contractual cost for the Lynx service and other planned contractual services

such as Transportation Disadvantaged that is lagging.

Revenues 

Annual Budget % YTD Budget YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Revenues 
FTA 5307 Grant  $    1,125,545 17%  $        281,386   $                  - 0% 
Fares  $     186,661 3%  $    46,665  $    32,169 69% 
PCTS  $    5,245,278 80%  $     1,311,320   $     1,311,320 100% 
Total  $    6,557,484 100%  $     1,639,371   $     1,343,489 82% 

Expenses 

Annual Budget % YTD Budget YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Labor  $    3,434,803 52%  $        858,701   $   492,183 57% 

Contract  $     833,783 13%  $        208,446   $   - 0% 

Operating  $    2,288,898 35%  $        572,225   $   314,575 55% 

Total  $    6,557,484 100%  $     1,639,371   $   806,758 49% 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016  
AGENDA ITEM #4(c)

Agenda Item: Ridership Report 

Presenter: David Persaud, CFO 

Recommended Action: Information only 

Financial Impact: None 

Summary: Year to date ridership information for the entire system including 
LAMTD, Winter Haven, Rural and Demand Response through December 31, 2016 

Attachment:   Ridership Report 













LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

March 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4(d) 

Agenda Item: Authorization to add a position in Finance for the Transit 
Disadvantaged Program  

Presenter: David Persaud, CFO 

Recommended 
Action: Approve the position of Fiscal Analyst – T.D. Program 

Management  

Summary: On October 14, 2015 the LAMTD Board approved a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between LAMTD and 
the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
for the LAMTD to serve as the Community Transportation 
Coordinator (CTC)  for Polk County.  Chapter 427, Florida 
Statues created coordinating council on the Transportation 
Disadvantaged within Department of Transportation to foster 
the coordination of transportation services. The overall mission 
of Florida Transportation Disadvantaged Program is to ensure 
the availability of safe, efficient, cost-effective and quality 
transportation services for the transportation disadvantaged 
population of a designated service area. 

The LAMTD Finance Department will be responsible for the 
Polk County Transportation Disadvantaged Fiscal Program 
with the following responsibilities: 

1) Prepare and submit Annual Operating Budget.

2) Prepare and submit Annual Operating Report (AOR).
The AOR is an annual report by the CTC regarding all
the services provided.

a. Fixed Route trips
b. Paratransit trips
c. Vehicle information
d. Employees information
e. Financial Data (revenues and expenses)



AGENDA ITEM #     – CONT. 

3) Rate Model- for service delivery

4) Grant- Administration for two grants.
a. Shirley Conroy Rural Area Capital Assistance

Program Grant
b. Trip & Equipment Grant $1.2 million

5) Financial and Grant accounting and audit related work
for compliance.

The compliance, accounting and both financial and statistical 
reporting requirements were not addressed when the District 
assumed the CTC responsibilities. To meet the requirements of 
the TD program a dedicated position for the CTC and the TD 
Program is mandatory for compliance. There is no financial 
obligation of the District since the funding for this position will 
be from two grants and Polk County funding. The estimated 
salary for this position is $55,000 to $65,000 plus fringe 
benefits. This equates to $28,000 to $33,000 fiscal impact for 
salaries plus fringe benefits for this fiscal year. 

Funding: Funds are available in the Polk County Transit FY 2015-16 
Operating Budget and the CTC Grants totaling $1,321,387. 

The TD Program fiscal year is July 1, through June 30 which 
translates into six months for the District FY 2015-16. The TD 
Program for the District is effective April 1, 2016. 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: March 9, 2016  
AGENDA ITEM #4(e)

Agenda Item: Resolution and Florida Commission for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) Trust Fund 
Trip/Equipment Grant Agreement for FY 2015/2016. 

Presenter: David Persaud, CFO. 

Recommended Action:  Recommend that the Board approve the three month 
Trips and Equipment Grant with the CTD April 1, 
through June 30, 2016. 

Financial Impact: $330,300 Grant Funding, $33,030 onetime local match 
budgeted in Polk County Agreement. 

Summary: The State Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged administers the State Transportation 
Disadvantaged Trust Fund. The primary purpose of the 
trust fund is to provide transportation for transportation 
disadvantaged county residents who have no other means 
of transportation or are not sponsored for that need by 
any other available funding source. Serving as the new 
Community Transportation Coordinator for Polk County, 
the District is now eligible for these funds.  

Trips provided under the Transportation Disadvantaged 
funding are for those residents who have no other means 
of transportation, including personal vehicles, access to 
fixed-route buses and help from family and friends. Trips 
are needed for daily activities such as dialysis, therapy, 
general medical appointments, life skills training, grocery 
shopping, and other life-sustaining purposes. More than 
70% of these trips are provided to elderly and/or disabled 
citizens of Polk County. 

Attachment:   Trip and Equipment Grant Agreement and Resolution. 



AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION #16-10 
FOR 

TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED TRUST FUND 

A RESOLUTION of the LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT (Recipient), hereinafter 
DISTRICT, hereby authorizes the execution of a Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund Grant 
Agreement with the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged. 

WHEREAS, this DISTRICT is eligible to receive a Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund 
Grant and to undertake a transportation disadvantaged service project as authorized by Section 
427.0159, Florida Statutes, and Rule 41-2, Florida Administrative Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD THAT: 

1. The DISTRICT has the authority to enter into this grant agreement.

2. The DISTRICT authorizes the Chairman to execute the grant agreement on behalf of
the DISTRICT with the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged.

3. The DISTRICT authorizes the Chairman to sign any and all agreements or contracts
which are required in connection with the grant agreement.

5. The DISTRICT authorizes the Chairman to sign any and all assurances,
reimbursement invoices, warranties, certifications and any other documents which
may be required in connection with the agreement or subsequent agreements.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9 DAY OF MARCH, 2016      

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

John Hall  
Typed name of Chairperson 

_______________________________________________ 
Signature of Chairperson 

ATTEST:  Tim Darby 

BY: 
    Attorney 















































LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5 

 
 
Agenda Item: Legal 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby 
 
Recommended   
Action: Approval for Interlocal Agreement between LAMTD and 

the City of Winter Haven to run the LEGOLAND Route 
30 

  
Summary:  Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #6 

 
 
Agenda Item: Board Action(s) 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended   
Action: None 
  
Summary:  None 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #7(c) 

 
 
Agenda Item: MOU Articles 13 and Union CBA Amendment 
 
Presenter: Mary Lynne Janoso, Director of HR & Risk Management 
 
Recommended  
Action: Approval to MOU and CBA Amendment 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments: MOU and Amendment 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #7(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Approve the addition a Facilities Technician I 
 
 
Presenter: Mary Lynne Janoso/Dean Kirkland-McMillan 
 
Recommended  
Action: Recommend the Board approve the addition of a 

facilities technician 
 
 
Summary: Previously the county contracted with an agency for 

Janitorial services and landscaping services @ the Winter 
Haven terminal, we would like to bring those services in- 
house and hire a full time Facilities technicians that will 
assume those responsibilities on the East side of the 
county including maintain Motor pool road where we 
have a bus storage facility. 

 
 
Funding:        Board of County Commissioner budgeted $25,200 for 

contracted services, convert one open part time position 
at $11,700, additional funding of $8,230 will come from 
associated cost savings in the budget from the BoCC, the 
total cost for this position will be $45, 130. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #7(b) 

Agenda Item:       Authorization to add a position in Operations support for a Transit 
Coach 

Presenter: Mary Lynne Janoso/Dean Kirkland-McMillan 

Recommended 
Action: Approve the Transit Coach position 

Summary: Over the years there has been numerous conversation about having a Transit 
Coach that will work with the Community for Travel training, mobility 
management, the need has expanded tremendously since the merger with Polk 
County Transit services, we now have the Smart shuttle and deviated  routes 
on the East side of the county and numerous assisted living facilities and 
schools throughout Polk County that need a staff person to work with to 
enhance their ability to navigate Public transportation. On October 14, 2015 
the LAMTD Board approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
between LAMTD and the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Program for the LAMTD to serve as the Community Transportation 
Coordinator (CTC) for Polk County, this position will work with a lot of 
customers that benefits from the transportation Disadvantage program    

 Description:     
A. Serves as liaison with clients regarding barrier  
B. Performs training and practice for clients with mobility devices 

on boarding and de-boarding fixed route buses. 
C. Develops, teaches, and conducts community outreach 

workshops and presentations to community agencies, schools, 
churches, senior centers, transportation fairs, and professional 
organizations  

D. Develop strategies to improve ridership on the smart shuttle 
and other deviated routes. 

Funding: Funds are available in the Polk County Transit FY 2015-16 Operating Budget, 
Smart Shuttle Grant/and CTC Transportation Disadvantage Grant. Salaried 
position range $44,000 to $66,720.00 annually based on experience.  



Page 1 of 2 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
Between 

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT  
 And 

TRANSPORT WORKERS UNION OF AMERICA  
AFL-CIO LOCAL 525  

 

Whereas the Transport Workers Union of America AFL-CIO Local 525 (“the Union”) and 

the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District (“the District”) agree to the following revision of 

Article 13 -- Work Clothing. Tools and Safety Shoes: 

Current Language: 

Parts Specialist, Parts, Procurement, Technicians & MIS Administrative Specialist will be allowed 

a reimbursement for Safety Work Shoes limited to $125 per year. 

New Language: 

Parts Specialist, Parts, Procurement, Technicians & MIS Administrative Specialist will be allowed 

a reimbursement for Safety Work Shoes limited to $150 per year.   

1. This change shall be effective the first payroll period following the date of the execution of this 

Memorandum of Understanding, but no earlier than ___________.   

2. The remainder of Article 13 and all other Articles and Sections of the Collective Bargaining 

Agreement between the parties not addressed within this Memorandum of Understanding are 

unchanged.  

3. The effective date of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties is October 1, 

2015 through October 2, 2018. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

[SIGNATURE LINES CONTAINED ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 
Date: _____________ __    Date: _____________ __ 
 
 For the Union:                                             For the District: 
  
 
 
Kevin Smith – President Transport Workers  
Union of America AFL-CIO Local 525  Commissioner John Hall - Chairman 
 
 
__________________________________  __________________________________ 
           
   
       Commissioner George Lindsey - Vice Chair 
 
        
       __________________________________ 
        
  
       Commissioner Jim Malless - Secretary 
         
        
       __________________________________ 
        
 
       Commissioner Phillip Walker 
             
        
       __________________________________ 
       
 

Commissioner Don Selvage 
 

       
       __________________________________ 
        
 
       Tom Phillips - Executive Director  
 
 
       __________________________________ 

 
 

24056365.1 



AN AMENDMENT OF THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
 BETWEEN LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 AND TRANSPORT WORKERS UNION OF AMERICA AFL-CIO LOCAL 525  
 
WHEREAS, on October 1, 2015, Lakeland Area Mass Transit District and Transport Workers Union of America AFL-CIO 
Local 525 entered into a Collective Bargaining Agreement and; 
 
WHEREAS, Article 19 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement under the Availability to Work section requires 
operators to that are off because of illness, requested or excused absence will not be considered available to work until 
they have reported their availability to work by 6pm the day prior to their return. 
 
WHEREAS, since the execution of the Collective Bargaining Agreement, a verbiage change has been determined 
necessary to clarify the Availability to Work section. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by Lakeland Area Mass Transit District and Transport Workers Union of America 
AFL-CIO Local 525 that: 
 
First Amendment to Article 19, Availability to Work Section of the Collective Bargaining Agreement 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District and Transport Workers Union of America AFL-CIO Local 525 hereby approve the 
verbiage change under article 19 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement. This amendment will take effect immediately 
upon its passage. 
 
 Availability for Work 
 When an employee is unable to report for work at his/her assigned time for any reason,  he/she shall notify 
 his/her dispatcher or supervisor as appropriate, as soon as possible, and at least sixty minutes prior to report 
 time. Any absenteeism/tardiness issued not specifically addressed in the CBA will mirror the Citrus Connection 
 Employee Handbook Absentee/Tardiness Guidelines & Policies. Failing to give such notification, he/she  shall 
 not be reinstated upon their return to work unless a reasonable explanation is furnished to the Employer. 
 Employees who miss out may be required to work on the day of the miss out if they are needed to maintain 
 service to the public.  
  
  Operators off because of unplanned/unscheduled time off will not be considered available to work 
   until they have reported their availability to work by 6 pm the day prior to their return.  
 
 Part time operators shall be used as needed to provide service to the public. At the discretion of the District, 
 they shall be used to staff the extra board or work assigned runs. 
 
 Passed and Adopted this 9th day of February 2016, by the following: 
 
 Transport Workers Union Local 525   Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
 
 _________________________________________  ________________________________________ 
 Wes Warren, TWU Section Chairman   Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
 _________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
 Witness       Witness 
 
 
 
 Lakeland Area Mass Transit District Board of Directors 
 
 _________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
 John Hall, Chairman     Witness 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #8(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Executive Updates 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
Recommended 
Action: MOU approval for current Union CBA 
 
Summary: 
 

• Monthly Activities Report 
• UAP Update 
• MOU Union CBA - Communication 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





UAP Ridership Totals 2015-16 LAMTD WHAT Total
December 18,008 18,008

January 15,107 9,144 24,251
UAP Ridership 2015-16 LAMTD WHAT Total
Polk State College

December 198                            198                       
January 2,986                         1,376                    4,362                    

LEGOLAND
December 1,053                         1,053                    

January 156                            1,198                    1,354                    
South Eastern University

December 292                            292                       
January 203                            36                          239                       

Everest University
December 967                            967                       

January 589                            116                       705                       
COLTS

December 3,111                         3,111                    
January 2,235                         1,753                    3,988                    

Veterans
December 3,850                         3,850                    

January 2,576                         1,057                    3,633                    
Southern Technical College

December 657                            657                       
January 253                            1,057                    916                       

Polk Health Care
December 4,233                         4,233                    

January 2,733                         1,120                    3,853                    
Polytechnic

December 1,004                         1,004                    
January 1,411                         50                          1,461                    

Central Florida Healthcare
December 2,445                         2,445                    

January 1,792                         320                       2,112                    
Transition House

December 198                            198                       
January -                                 236                       236                       



Page 1 of 5 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING REGARDING INFORMAL DISCUSSIONS 
Between 

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT  
 AND 

TRANSPORT WORKERS UNION OF AMERICA  
AFL-CIO LOCAL 525  

 
  

 This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU” or “Memorandum”) is entered into by and between 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District (“the District”) and Transport Workers Union of America AFL-CIO Local 

525 (“Union”) (collectively referred to as the “Parties”): 

 WHEREAS, the District and the Union are parties to a collective bargaining agreement (“CBA”), 

effective from October 1, 2015 through October 2, 2017, covering all regular full-time and part-time Apprentice 

Technicians, Technicians, Master Technicians, Quality Assurance 

Master Technicians, Parts Procurement & MIS Administrative Specialists, Bus Operators, Bus Operator 

Trainees, Electronic Technicians, Utility 1 & 2 Technicians, Facility 1 & 2 Technicians, and Parts Technicians. 

 WHEREAS, the District and the Union desire, from time to time, to informally discuss and possibly 

adjust issues that do not rise to the level of a formal grievance;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, the District and the Union desire to set forth their mutually agreed upon 

understanding in this MOU as follows: 

1. Beginning March 9, 2016, when the Union wishes to institute informal discussions or to submit a  

investigation and fact sheet (Attachment A) as discussed herein, the TWU Section Chairman will 

deliver or send an email directed to the Labor Relations Representative with Attachment A.  

2. Beginning March 9, 2016, when the District wishes to institute formal or informal discussions as 

discussed herein, the Labor Relations Representative will send an email directed to the TWU Section 

Chairman with Attachment A. 

3. Formal or Informal discussions may take place in person, by telephone or email, and will begin within 

five (5) calendar days from the initial email. 

 



Page 2 of 5 
 

 

 

4. The Parties agree that neither the Union nor the District waive any claims and/or defenses that could 

have been raised in any grievance if the Union files a subsequent grievance on behalf of any 

Bargaining Unit Employee under Article 9 of the CBA. 

5. No arbitrator selected to decide any subsequent grievance shall be permitted to rely upon, infer from, 

or otherwise consider the fact that the District and the Union entered into this MOU.  

6. Nothing in this MOU shall abrogate or otherwise modify the parties’ respective rights and 

responsibilities as set forth in the CBA.  Nothing in this MOU is intended to or shall be deemed to be 

a modification or amendment of any of the provisions set forth the current CBA.   

7. This MOU is entirely non-precedential as to any claims (whether or not presently existing) by the 

Union, the District, or any person, firm, corporation, agency or labor organization, and this MOU  

cannot be relied upon or otherwise used in any labor arbitration or civil proceeding as an admission 

against interest or precedent of any kind. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURE LINES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 5 
 

 

 

Date: _____________    Date: _____________  
 
 

 For the Union:                                                For the District: 
  
 Wes Warren, TWU Section Chairman Commissioner John Hall, Chairman 
 
 _________________________             ______________________________ 
         
       Commissioner George Lindsey, Vice Chairman  
         
       ______________________________ 
 
     
       Commissioner Jim Malless, Secretary 
 
       ______________________________ 
 

 
       Commissioner Don Selvage 
 
       ______________________________ 
 
 
       Commissioner Phillip Walker 
 
       ______________________________ 
         
        
       Tom Phillips- Executive Director  
 
       ______________________________ 
 

 

 
 

23348508.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 5 
 

Pre – Grievance Investigation & Fact Sheet 

Citrus Connection Employee Information Attachment A 
 
To  
From  
Employee Name  
Classification  
Supervisor  
Date of Incident  
Alleged CBA Violation  

 
Description of Incident or Occurrence (Union):  
Steward Chairman ____________ Initials  
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Description of Incident or Occurrence (Employer): 
Supervisor ______________ Initials 
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Settlement if Available 
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Circle one: Settled   /  Not Settled            _______________ Date 
 
  
_____________________________    _______________________________  
TWU Steward Chairman     Labor Relations Representative   
          



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #9 

 
 
Agenda Item: Other Business 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: None 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Meeting Minutes 2-10-16
	Agenda ITEM 4(c) - Ridership report
	Ridership Graphs
	Agenda ITEM 5 - Legal
	Agenda ITEM 6 - Board Action
	Agenda ITEM 7(a)- HR -  Facilities
	Agenda ITEM 7(b) - HR -  Transit Coach
	MOU Article 13
	Agenda ITEM 7(c) - CBA Amendment
	CBA Amendment 1
	Agenda ITEM 8(a) - Executive Report
	February Calendar
	Ridership Spreadsheet
	Sheet1

	MOU and Pre Grievance  2016
	Citrus Connection Employee Information Attachment A

	Agenda ITEM 9 - Other Business
	January Financial Spreadsheet
	January LAMTD Financial Report
	Resolution TD 2015-16
	FL CTD Grant Agrmt



